
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Standards Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Thursday 5 April 2012 
7.00 pm 

Committee Room 2 - Hammersmith Town Hall 
 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Administration: Opposition Independent Members 
Councillor Adronie Alford 
Councillor Nicholas Botterill 
Councillor Donald Johnson 
 

Councillor Stephen Cowan 
Councillor Lisa Homan 
 

Joyce Epstein 
(Chairman) 
Grace Moody-Stuart 
Steven Moussavi 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Gary Marson 

Principal Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance & Scrutiny 

 �: 020 8753 2278 
 E-mail: gary.marson@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 
 

Date Issued: 
 

27 March 2012 
 

 
 



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Standards Committee 
Agenda 

 
5 April 2012 

 
 
Item  Pages 
1. MINUTES  1 - 3 
 To approve as an accurate record, and the Chairman to sign, the 

minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 20 July 2011.  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 If a Councillor has any prejudicial or personal interest in a particular 

report he/she should declare the existence and nature of the interest at 
the commencement of the consideration of the item or as soon as it 
becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a prejudicial interest may 
also make representations, give evidence or answer questions about 
the matter. The Councillor must then withdraw immediately from the 
meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote taken, unless a 
dispensation has been obtained from the Standards Committee. 
 
Where members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance, then 
the Councillor with a prejudicial interest should withdraw from the 
meeting whilst the matter is under consideration, unless the disability 
has been removed by the Standards Committee. 
 

 

4. LOCALISM ACT 2012 - IMPLEMENTATION OF PROPOSALS  4 - 10 
 The Localism Act 2011 abolishes the existing Standards regime and 

introduces a new framework for the regulation of Member conduct.  This 
report sets out the relevant provisions of the Act along with notable 
implications for the Council and proposals for local implementation. It is 
anticipated that the new provisions will come into effect from 1st July 
2012. 
 

 

5. MEMBERS ALLOWANCES 2011/12 OUTTURN  11 - 18 
 This report responds to a request from the Committee to receive 

annually a report on the Members’ Allowances Scheme and how much 
each Member was paid in the previous year.  
 

 

6. LOCAL ASSESSMENT OF COMPLAINTS - REVIEW  19 - 22 
 This report outlines activity by the Standards (Assessment & Review) 

Sub- Committees from June 2008 to date.  
 

 

 



. London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Standards 
Committee 

Minutes 
 

Wednesday 20 July 2011 
 

 
 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Nicholas Botterill, Lisa Homan and Donald Johnson 
 
Independent  members: Joyce Epstein (Chairman) 
 
Officers:  Kayode Adewumi (Head of Governance and Scrutiny) and Gary Marson 
(Principal Committee Coordinator) 
 
The commencement of the meeting was delayed by 15 minutes in order to ensure a 
quorum. 

 
1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  

 
RESOLVED that; 
 
Joyce Epstein be elected Chairman of the Committee for the 2011/12 Municipal 
Year. 
 

2. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that; 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 24 March 2010 be confirmed and signed as an 
accurate record of the proceedings. 
 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Adronie Alford and Stephen 
Cowan and Grace Moody-Stuart and Steven Moussavi. 
 

4. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
All members of the Committee in attendance declared a personal interest in the 
item concerning Members allowances since it set out details of the payments each 
had received from the Authority in 2010/11. As the interests were not prejudicial 
each Member remained in the room and participated in the debate thereon. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



 
5. FUTURE OF THE STANDARDS REGIME  

 
The Committee received details of the Government’s proposals, contained in the 
Localism Bill, to abolish the Standards Board Regime. 
 
Member noted that the Government was of the view that the standards regime had 
become a vehicle for malicious and frivolous complaints which damaged the 
reputation and standing of local government and wasted public funds. It cited the 
fact that of over 6,000 complaints investigated by local Standards Committees in 
the first two years of local assessment arrangements, fewer than half were 
deemed worthy of action. Members noted that the system appeared not to have 
been abused at Hammersmith & Fulham with only a handful of complaints 
submitted and just two from members of the public. It was recognised, however, 
that some authorities were overburdened with vexatious allegations. 
 
The Localism Bill, which was due to receive Royal Assent in the Autumn, therefore 
contained clauses which would revoke the model code of conduct for Councillors, 
remove the requirement for local authorities to maintain a statutory Standards 
Committee and abolish the Standards Board for England. Potential savings 
nationwide were estimated at more than £6m per annum. It was intended, 
however, that Councillors would still be required to register certain personal 
interests in a publicly available register whilst deliberate failure to withhold or 
misrepresent an interest would become a criminal offence. The existing statutory 
framework continued to apply in the interim. 
 
Members discussed the options the Council could explore for the management of 
complaints against Councillors if the proposals were enacted. It was noted that 
some authorities were giving consideration to the development of voluntary local 
codes of conduct in which a Standards Committee would continue to operate on a 
discretionary basis. This would have no enforceable sanctions but might retain the 
power of censure. Alternatively, if no Standards Committee was maintained 
residual functions could be passed to other Committees – Members suggested 
either the Audit Committee, which already had powers to investigate corporate 
fraud, or the Scrutiny Board. The Council could also agree that any code of 
conduct be enforced via the Monitoring Officer and Whips alone. As a minimum 
some means of filtering complaints to determine which were worthy of reference to 
the Police for investigation was required. In the absence of a Standards Committee 
this role would be likely to fall to the Monitoring Officer.  
 
Members emphasised the need for a transparent system that retained the 
confidence of the public and did not allow for the possibility of ‘behind closed door’ 
solutions. Councillor Botterill expressed a preference for an independent led 
external process. 
 
The Committee’s views on the preferred approach would be formally sought later 
in the year once further details of the new arrangements were known.  
 
RESOLVED that; 
 

i) the report be noted;and 

Page 2



ii) the Monitoring Officer draft detailed proposals for the Committee’s 
consideration once the Localism Bill receives Royal Assent 

 
6. MEMBERS ALLOWANCES OUTTURN REPORT 2010/11  

 
The Committee received details of the Members allowances scheme for the 
2011/12 Municipal Year together with the amounts paid to each elected Member of 
the Authority and co-optee in 2010/11. It was noted that allowances remained 
frozen in line with 2008/09 levels. No new Special Responsibility Allowances had 
been created for the current year and co-optees allowances had been reduced to 
reflect a trend towards fewer meetings.  
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
the 2011/12 Members Allowances Scheme and the 2010/11 allowances outturn be 
noted 
 

7. LOCAL ASSESSMENT OF COMPLAINTS  
 
The Committee reviewed the activity of the Assessment and Review Sub-
Committees in respect of the determination of complaints against Members for the 
period since March 2010. Three complaints had been received during that time, 
two of which had been found not to relate to a breach of the Code of Conduct. 
 
RESOLVED that; 
 
the report be noted. 

 
Meeting started: 7.15 pm 
Meeting ended: 7.36 pm 

 
 

Chairman   
 
 
 
 

Contact officer: Gary Marson 
Principal Committee Co-ordinator 
Councillors Services 

 �: 020 8753 2278 
 E-mail: gary.marson@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 3



 STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

5 APRIL 2012 
 
 

 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 
ADLADS 
HCS 

LOCALISM ACT 2011 – IMPLEMENTATION OF 
PROPOSALS 

 
Summary 
 
The Localism Act 2011 abolishes the existing Standards 
regime and introduces a new framework for the regulation of 
Member conduct.  This report sets out the relevant 
provisions of the Act along with notable implications for the 
Council and proposals for local implementation. It is 
anticipated that the new provisions will come into effect from 
1st July 2012. 
 

WARDS 
 
ALL  

 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
• That the proposals for the new Standards Regime as 

set out in the report be recommended to full Council for 
implementation.  

 
• That the publication of a joint advert for the recruitment 

of Independent Persons in conjunction with the Royal 
Borough of Kensington and Chelsea, be approved. 

 
• That the Standards Committee Appointments Panel 

shortlist and select the Independent Person as required 
by the legislation and make recommendations to full 
Council. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 4



 
1. BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Localism Act 2011 abolishes the existing Standards regime and 

introduces a new framework for the regulation of Member conduct. The 
relevant provisions of the Act are set out below along with notable 
implications for the Council and proposals for local implementation. It is 
anticipated that the new provisions will come into effect from 1st July 2012. 

 
2. THE NEW PROVISIONS ON PREDETERMINATION  
 

Chapter 6, Section 25 - Prior indications as to view of a matter not to 
amount to predetermination 

 
2.1 This clarifies how the common law concept of ‘predetermination’ applies to 

councillors in England and Wales.  Predetermination occurs where 
someone has a closed mind, with the effect that they are unable to apply 
their judgment fully and properly to an issue requiring a decision.  Decisions 
made by Councillors later judged to have predetermined views have been 
quashed. 

 
2.2 The Section makes it clear that if a Councillor has given a view on an issue, 

this does not show that the councillor has a closed mind on that issue, so 
that if a Councillor has campaigned on an issue or made public statements 
about their approach to an item of Council business, he or she will be able 
to participate in discussion of that issue in the council and to vote on it if it 
arises in an item of Council business requiring a decision. 

 
2.3 The advice in the Council’s ‘Guidance for Councillors and Officers dealing 

with Planning and Licensing’ will be revised.  Despite the views of some that 
the provision is of wider application than the current common law position, 
the better view is that that it confirms the current position (which was arrived 
at after some years of uncertainty). 

 
3. THE NEW PROVISIONS ON STANDARDS  
 

Section 26 - Amendments of existing provisions  
 
3.1 Section 26, and Schedule 4, abolishes the Standards Board regime, which 

consists of the Standards Board for England, standards committees of local 
authorities, the jurisdiction of the First-tier Tribunal in relation to local 
government standards in England, and model codes of conduct for 
Councillors. None of the functions of the Standards Board for England are 
to be preserved. 

 
3.2 The power for the Secretary of State to issue a model code of conduct and 

to specify principles to govern the conduct of members of relevant 
authorities is removed together with the requirement for relevant authorities 
to establish standards committees.  The First-tier Tribunal loses its 
jurisdiction over Councillor conduct issues.  The Local Govt Ombudsman 
retains jurisdiction on complaints of maladministration arising from Member 
conduct issues. 

Page 5



 
Section 27 - Duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct 

 
3.3 This places a duty on a relevant authority to ensure that its Members and 

co-opted Members maintain high standards of conduct and requires such 
authorities to adopt a code of conduct for their Members. 

 
3.4 The specific responsibility of maintaining high standards of conduct for 

Members will be delegated to the Audit and Pensions Committee.  The 
additional burden for the Committee will be very limited. An extra meeting 
per year would be sufficient to consider issues of training and publicity, 
receive such reports from the Monitoring Officer as may be desired and 
review the code of conduct and constitutional arrangements to ensure that 
they continue to be fit for purpose. 

 
Section 28 – Codes of Conduct 

 
3.5 This requires a relevant authority to adopt a code whose contents must be 

consistent with the seven ‘Nolan’ principles of standards in public life 
(selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and 
leadership), and must set out the rules that the authority wants to put in 
place with regard to requiring Members to register and disclose pecuniary 
and non-pecuniary interests. 

 
3.6 It also requires an authority to put in place arrangements under which it can 

investigate an allegation of a breach of a code made in writing and, if it is 
considered that an investigation is warranted, requires the authority to 
appoint at least one Independent Person whose views must be sought after 
it has made an investigation and before it takes a decision. 

 
3.7 It allows Members who have had an allegation made against them to seek 

the views of the independent person if they wish. The section prevents 
Councillors, co-optees, existing Independent Standards Members, officers 
or their relatives or friends from being appointed as Independent Persons 
and provides for the appointment process to be publicised and transparent. 

 
3.8 The LGA are shortly to publish a draft model code which will be circulated to 

all local authorities to use or amend as they see fit.  Once the draft code 
has been issued, Members will consider whether its’ provisions are robust 
enough. The Standards Assessment Sub-Committee recently 
recommended that the new code should contain guidance on the use of 
Social Media by Members.  Following through this recommendation, 
Members might consider whether to include other policies. 
 

3.9 Section 28 - Independent Persons 
 
The legislation requires an authority to appoint at least one Independent 
Person:- 
 

(a) whose views are to be sought, and taken into account, by the 
authority before it makes its decision on an allegation that it has 
decided to investigate, and 

Page 6



 
(b) whose views may be sought— 
 
(i) by the authority in relation to an allegation in 
circumstances not within paragraph (a), 
 
(ii) by a member, or co-opted member, of the authority if 
that person's behaviour is the subject of an allegation, and 
 
(iii) by a member, or co-opted member, of a parish council if 
that person's behaviour is the subject of an allegation and 
the authority is the parish council's principal authority. 

 
3.10 It is proposed that a joint advert covering Kensington and Chelsea and 

Hammersmith and Fulham Councils be placed seeking the appointment of 
at least one Independent Person per Borough.  They will be appointed 
separately by each Borough but jointly to form a pool from which they would 
be called upon to act. The pool would ensure that there are sufficient 
numbers to be consulted by any of the parties involved in the process.  An 
allowance in the region of £500 per annum will be paid to the Independent 
Person, in line with what Westminster City Council are proposing to offer.  

 
3.11. The Act bars existing Standards Committee Members who within the last 

five years have been a member, co-opted member or officer of the authority 
in question from being appointed as the Independent Person. This rules out 
existing members of the Council’s current Standards Committee from being 
appointed as an Independent Person.   The Government considered that it 
is important that there is a clear break with the old Standards Board regime 
and that no person who is an independent member or chair of a Council’s 
statutory Standards Committee can be appointed as the Localism Act’s 
independent person while they continue to be a member of the Standards 
Committee.  

 
3.12 We have been informed that Ministers are minded that transitional provision 

should be made allowing a Council to appoint a person as an Independent 
Person who, although not a member or chairman of a Standards Committee 
at the time of appointment (or thereafter), has held such a post within the 
last five years.  This transitional provision would apply for the first year of 
the new arrangements (i.e. until 30 June 2013), and any person appointed 
under the transitional provisions would be able to continue to hold office 
after the transitional period, for whatever term the Council saw fit. 
 
Complaint Process  
 

3.13 It is proposed that the initial assessment on whether to investigate a 
complaint would be delegated to the Monitoring Officer who will consult with 
one of the Independent Persons.  Where they do not consider there to be a 
breach, the Monitoring Officer will inform the complainant of their decision 
and no further action would be taken.  Where they consider that there might 
be a breach, the complaint will be referred to the Audit and Pensions 
Committee for investigation.  The Audit and Pensions Committee will 
appoint a Sub-Committee to hear the complaint and determine whether or 

Page 7



not there has been a breach of the Code. The views of the independent 
person will be sought after the investigation has been carried out and before 
the Audit and Pensions Sub-Committee takes a decision on the complaint. 
 
Sanctions  
 

3.14 There are no statutory sanctions for breach of the new code of conduct 
(other than the criminal sanctions for failure to notify a disclosable pecuniary 
interest) but common law principles suggest that possible sanctions could 
include:- 
• the issue of a formal letter,  
• formal censure through a motion,  
• recommendation to a political group of removal from membership of 

a Committee (with potential financial consequences arising from the 
loss of a special responsibility allowance), 

• Publicising the decision  that a Member had breached the authority’s 
code of conduct 

• Other options that do not interfere with the fulfilment of the Member’s 
democratic role could also be considered. 

 
Appeals Process 
 

3.15 Where a Member is dissatisfied with the decision of the Audit and Pensions 
Sub-Committee in respect of a complaint against them, they could appeal to 
an Audit and Pension Appeals Sub-Committee comprising a different 
membership to the original, to reconsider the decision.  The Appeals Sub-
Committee could either endorse the previous decision or conclude that 
there is no breach and dismiss the complaint.  

 
Section 29 - Register of interests 

 
3.16 This requires the Monitoring Officer of the relevant authority to establish and 

maintain a register of members’ and co-opted members’ interests, to make 
the register available for inspection and to publish it on their authority’s 
website. All H&F Members’ declarations are already available online. The 
current arrangements for the declaration of interests will be slightly 
modified. 

 
Section 30 - Disclosure of pecuniary interests on taking office 

 
3.17 This requires members of relevant authorities to notify the monitoring officer 

of any disclosable pecuniary interests held either by them or a spouse or 
civil partner they live with, within 28 days of taking up office. There is no 
duty to keep these up to date and declare new interests arising on the 29th 
day or thereafter until the next election other than in respect of matters 
arising at meetings. 

 
3.18 The Section allows the Secretary of State to make regulations defining a 

‘disclosable pecuniary interest’, and requires the monitoring officer to enter 
any notified disclosable pecuniary interest in the authority’s register, as well 
as any other interest notified to them, whether or not it is pecuniary. 

 

Page 8



Section 31 - Pecuniary interests in matters considered at meetings or 
by a single member 

 
3.19 This requires a member of a relevant authority to disclose a disclosable 

pecuniary interest that they are aware of (apart from a sensitive interest) at 
a meeting or, if acting alone, where any matter to be considered relates to 
their interest. 

 
3.20 If the interest is not already registered, it requires members to register it 

within 28 days. The monitoring officer must then enter the interest in the 
authority’s register. 

 
3.21 It prohibits a member from participating in discussion or voting on any 

matter relating to their interest or, if acting alone, from taking any steps in 
relation to the matter (subject to any dispensations). 

 
3.22 In line with good practice, the Code and Council’s standing orders will 

require a Member to leave the room when a matter in which he or she has a  
disclosable pecuniary interest is debated or voted on.  
 
Section 32 - Sensitive interests 

 
3.23 This provides for details about a registered interest to be excluded from 

versions of the register that are available for public inspection or published 
where a member and monitoring officer agree that the disclosure of these 
details could lead to harm or intimidation of the member or their family. It 
provides for members to disclose only the fact that they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest in the matter concerned at meetings or when acting 
alone. 
 

3.24 This broadly replicates our existing practice whereby a Member can exclude 
his or her home and work details from the published version of the register.  
 
Section 33 - Dispensations from section 31(4) 

 
3.25 Section 33 empowers a relevant authority, on receipt of a written request, to 

grant dispensations for up to four years for a member to be able to 
participate in or vote at meetings where they have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest. 

 
3.26 Authorities may grant dispensations if they consider that by not granting a 

dispensation, the business of the authority or committee is likely to be 
impeded; or that the political balance of the committee or authority is so 
upset as to alter the outcome of a vote; or that granting the dispensation is 
in the interests of residents; or that all members of the executive are unable 
to participate in business to be carried out by the executive; or that they 
consider it appropriate to grant a dispensation for other reasons. 

 
3.27 The arrangements for granting dispensations will fall within the terms of 

reference of the Audit and Pensions Committee which could set up a Sub 
Committee to consider the request. 

 

Page 9



Section 34 - Offences 
 
3.28 Section 34 makes it a criminal offence if a Member or co-opted Member 

fails, without reasonable excuse, to comply with requirements under section 
30 or 31 to register or declare disclosable pecuniary interests (but not other 
such interests as the Council may include in its Code), or take part in 
Council business at meetings or when acting alone when prevented from 
doing so. 

 
3.29 It empowers the magistrates` court, upon conviction, to impose a fine of up 

to level 5 (currently £5,000), and an order disqualifying the person from 
being a member of a relevant authority for up to five years. It extends the 
time for bringing a prosecution for the offence by allowing a prosecution to 
be brought within 12 months of the prosecuting authorities having the 
evidence to warrant prosecution, but any prosecution must be brought 
within 3 years of the commission of the offence and only by or on behalf of 
the Director of Public Prosecutions. 
 

3.30 The Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Independent Persons will 
refer alleged offences to the Police for investigation.  

 
Section 37 - Transitional provision 

 
3.31 Section 37 gives particulars of the Secretary of State’s power to make 

transitional provision in relation to the abolition of the Standards Board 
regime. Allegations of misconduct can be brought against a member up to 
the date when section 57A of the Local Government Act 2000 is repealed. 

 
3.32 The transitional provisions mentioned in this section could make provision 

for any such allegations to be transferred from the Standards Board for 
England to local authority standards committees, and could make provision 
for the penalties which can be imposed by those committees, and rights of 
appeal, to be modified. 

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
No. 
 

Brief Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext. of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/Location 
 
1. 
 
 

Localism Act 2011 Kayode Adewumi  
Legal, First Floor HTH, 
Room 133a 

 
 

Page 10



 STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

5 April 2012 
 

 
 MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES OUTTURN 2011/12 

 
Summary 
 
This report responds to a request from the Committee to 
receive annually a report on the Members’ Allowances 
Scheme and how much each Member was paid in the 
previous year.  
 

WARDS 
 
ALL  

CONTRIBUTORS 
 
ADLADS 
HCS 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
 
That the Standards Committee notes the 2012/13 Members’ 
Allowance Scheme and the 2011/12 outturn, as circulated. 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 11



  

1. Background 
 
1.1 At its meeting in November 2009, the Committee received a report 
outlining the allowance received by Councillors, Independent and co-opted 
Members sitting on Committees.   
 
1.2 Local authorities are required to adopt a Members’ Allowances Scheme 
on an annual basis, with effect from 1 April each year.  When amending its 
Members’ Allowances Scheme, a Council must pay regard to the 
recommendations of its Independent Remuneration Panel.  The main allowances 
paid are basic, special responsibility, dependent carer and travel and 
subsistence.   
 
1.3 On 29 February 2012, the Council agreed the Councillors’ allowances for 
the 2012/13 financial year.  In taking the decision, Members took into account the 
recommendations made in the Independent Remunerator’s report to London 
Councils issued in May 2010 but decided to retain its own basic rate allowance.  
Since 2009, due to the economic conditions, the Council has frozen allowances 
at the 2008/9 levels.  In years prior to this decision being taken, an automatic 
uplift in line with the previous year’s Local Government Pay Settlement was 
made.   
 
1.4 The Council’s Scheme broadly remains the same as agreed in May 2011 
except for the creation of a Lead Member for Resident Involvement (Housing) 
SRA entitled post.  This role was created due to the strategic importance of 
Housing in the Administration’s policy agenda to assist the Cabinet Member for 
Housing in the following areas:- 

 
• Responsibility for chairing the Borough Forum and setting the Forum’s 

agenda in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing. 
• Responsibility for overseeing the review of the structure of the Area Forums 

and lead liaison between the Housing and Regeneration Department and the 
Forums in conjunction with the Cabinet Member for Housing. 

• Responsibility for leading the Council’s engagement, in its role as a social 
landlord, with registered Tenants’ and Residents’ Associations and 
associated organisations to drive forward resident satisfaction and improve 
service delivery. 

• Responsibility for leading on the liaison between the Housing and 
Regeneration Department and leaseholders in Hammersmith & Fulham- 
owned property, including overseeing the function of the Leaseholder Forums 
and the Leaseholder Conference, in conjunction with the Cabinet Member for 
Housing. 

• Responsibility for ensuring the effective delivery of the Council’s new 
Resident Involvement Strategy and oversight of the Resident’s Involvement 
Panel and the Repairs Working Group. 

• To lead on engagement with other Registered Providers of social housing 
within Hammersmith and Fulham in respect of resident involvement, and to 
assist the Cabinet Member for Housing in the discharge of functions relating 
to the social regulation aspects of the Localism Act 2011.  

Page 12



  

A special responsibility allowance of £6,183 was approved for the duties. In doing 
so, the Cabinet Assistant (Housing) role was deleted with effect from 1 March 
2012 when the new Lead Member role took effect.  A copy of the Scheme 
(Appendix 1) and the amounts paid to each Member (Appendix 2) are attached. 
 
2. Comments of the Assistant Director of Legal and Democratic 
Services 
 
The proposals contained within the report are in line with the Local Government 
Act 2000 and appropriate regulations. 
 
3. Comments of the Director of Finance and Corporate Services 
 
The Director of Finance and Corporate Services can confirm that there is 
sufficient provision in the existing budget to fund the costs as contained in this 
report. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000  
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
No. 
 

Brief Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext. of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/Location 
 
1. 
 

Councillors’ Allowances 
Scheme and Councillors’ 
Allowances – Amounts Paid 
2011-12 

Kayode Adewumi FCS Room 133, 1st 
floor, Town Hall. 

 

Page 13



APPENDIX 1 
 

Members’ Allowances Scheme 2011-12 (Revision) 
Members’ Allowances Scheme 2012-13 (Annual Review) 
[Revision effective from 1st March 2012] 
 
 
This scheme is made in accordance with the Local Authorities (Members’ 
Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 (“the Regulations”) for 2012 –2013 and 
subsequent years.  The allowances scheme has been prepared having regard to the 
report of the Independent Panel on the Remuneration of Councillors in London 
established by London Councils on behalf of all London Councils, co-authored by 
Rodney Brooke, Drew Stevenson and Jo Valentine, and published in May 2010. 
 
1.  BASIC ALLOWANCE 
 
1.1  The independent remunerator’s report suggests a flat-rate basic allowance be 

paid to each member of the authority of £9964 per annum to be paid in 12 
monthly instalments on the 15th of each month. 

 
1.2 The Council has taken into account the independent remunerator’s 

recommendation but has decided to retain its own basic rate allowance frozen 
at the 2008 – 09 level.  

 
The basic rate allowance for all LBHF Councillors will therefore be: 

 
 £8,940 - to be paid in 12 monthly instalments on the 15th of each month. 
 

Councillors only receive an allowance for the period of their term of office in 
cases where it is less than the whole financial year.  

 
2. SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCES 
 
2.1 Regard has been had to the recommendations in the independent 

remunerator’s report for differential banding in relation to the payment of 
Special Responsibility Allowances (SRAs), but in the interest of maintaining a 
low Council Tax and the current economic conditions, it has been decided to 
freeze the Council’s own scheme of SRAs at the same level approved for 
2008 - 9 and not to follow the independent remunerator’s recommendations 
which would have proved considerably more costly to local council taxpayers. 

 
2.2 The following Special Responsibility Allowances shall therefore be paid to 
 Councillors holding the specified offices indicated: 
 

The Leader £35,763 
Deputy Leader £29,796 
Other Cabinet members (6) £23,838 
Chief Whip (where not a member of Cabinet) £23,838 
Deputy Chief Whip £5,000 
Chairmen of Overview & Scrutiny Committees/Select 
Committees (4) 

£6,183 

Page 14



Leader of the Opposition £17,874 
Deputy Leader of the Opposition £6,183 
Opposition Whip £6,183 
Chairmen of Planning Applications Committee, Audit and 
Pensions Committee, Licensing Committee & councillor 
member on Adoption Panel, Lead Member for Resident 
Involvement (Housing) 

£6,183 

The Mayor £11,922 
Deputy Mayor £6,183 
Cabinet Assistants (6) £3,000 

 
Councillors only receive an allowance for the period of their term of office in 
cases where it is less than the whole financial year.  A Special Responsibility 
Allowance would cease where the SRA entitled post ceases to exist during year. 

 
3) OTHER ALLOWANCES 
 
a) Dependent Carer Allowance 

 
Dependant carer allowance is payable in respect of expenses incurred for the 
care of a member’s children or dependants in attending meetings of the 
authority, its executive, committees and sub-committees and in discharging 
the duties set out in paragraph 7 of the Regulations.   

(1) £4.18 per half hour before 10 p.m.; £5.31 per half hour after 10 p.m. 
(not payable in respect of a member of the councillor’s household). 

 
b) Travel & Subsistence  

 
Allowances are payable (at the same rates as employees) for duties 
undertaken away from the Town Halls when discharging duties under 
paragraph 8 of the Regulations.  In addition, the cost of travel after late 
evening meetings from the Town Hall would be paid. 
 

(1) Public Transport 
Actual travel costs (second class only) will be reimbursed. 
 

(2) Car mileage 
           45 pence per mile. 
 
(3) Cycle allowance 

£36.93 per month – where this is claimed, no other travel claims are 
permissible. 

(4) Subsistence 
Allowance payable at same rates and conditions as employees.  
Payment is only made for expenses incurred outside the Borough, and 
is subject to a maximum of £5.00 per claim. 

 
 
 
 

Page 15



c) Sickness, Maternity and Paternity Allowance 
 

Where a Member is entitled to a Special Responsibility Allowance, it will 
continue to be paid in the case of sickness, maternity and paternity leave in 
the same way as employees. 

 
4) ANNUAL INCREASE 
 

The allowances in this scheme apply to the financial year 2012-13.  All 
allowances have been frozen at the 2008 – 9 level.  

 
5) ELECTION TO FOREGO ALLOWANCES 
 

In accordance with the provisions of regulation 13, a Councillor may, by notice 
in writing to the Chief Executive, elect to forego any part, or all, of his or her 
entitlement to an allowance under this scheme. 
 

6) TIME LIMIT FOR CLAIMS 
 

The majority of allowances are payable monthly, but where allowances are 
the subject of claims, these claims should be made in the agreed form with 
the appropriate declaration within six months of the duty to which they relate. 

 
7) WITHHOLDING OF ALLOWANCES 

 
In the event of a Councillor being suspended or partially suspended, the 
Standards Committee shall have the power to withhold the allowances 
payable to that Councillor either in whole or in part for the duration of that 
suspension. 
 

8) MEMBERS’ PENSIONS 
 

Previously, Councillors could only join the authority’s pension scheme if they 
were aged under 70 and could only pay contributions and accrue benefits until 
their 70th birthday.  However, under new pensions regulations, the situation 
has changed, and the independent remunerator’s report now recommends all 
Councillors under the age of 75 years be entitled to join the London Borough 
of Hammersmith & Fulham Pension Scheme, and have their basic allowance 
and special responsibility allowances treated as pensionable.  This 
recommendation has accordingly been adopted. 

 
9) MEMBERSHIP OF MORE THAN ONE AUTHORITY 
 

A member may not receive allowances from more than one authority (within 
the meaning of the regulations) in respect of the same duties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 16



 
ALLOWANCES FOR CO-OPTED MEMBERS AND INDEPENDENT MEMBERS OF 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
Co-optees 
 
The independent remunerator’s report recommends a rate of allowance for co-opted 
members of £117 per meeting, to be calculated on an annualised basis by the 
number of meetings.  This recommended figure has not been adopted.  The 
Council’s own figure of £504.00 p.a. is payable by equal monthly instalments of 
£42.00 on the 15th of each month.   
 
Co-opted members shall be entitled to the same travel allowances as Councillors, 
but shall not be entitled to subsistence payments 
 
Standards Committee Independent Members 
 
The independent remunerator’s report also recommends the independent Chairman 
and Committee Members of a Standards Committee be paid an allowance of £256 
and £127 per meeting respectively, calculated on an annualised basis by the number 
of meetings, to reflect not just attendance at meetings, but related and incidental 
additional activity carried out by the postholders.  This recommendation has not been 
adopted.  The Council’s own figure of £252.00 p.a. is payable by equal monthly 
instalments of £21.00 on the 15th of each month.   
 
In all cases, the allowances given in this scheme shall not be uprated by the same 
percentage rate of increase as the previous years national Local Government Pay 
Settlement but frozen at the 2008 – 9 levels. 

 
 

Page 17



APPENDIX 2 Members Allowances Outturn 2011/12

Surname Forename Basic SRA
Dependant 
Care 

Other 
Expenses

Travel and 
Subsistence Total Payments

Adam Michael 8,940.00 6,626.55 15,566.55£      
Aherne Colin 8,940.00 6,183.00 15,123.00£      
Alford Adronie 8,940.00 10,791.34 19,731.34£      
Binmore Helen 8,940.00 23,828.04 8,992.66 41,760.70£      
Botterill Nicholas 8,940.00 29,796.00 38,736.00£      
Brocklebank-
Fowler Victoria 8,940.00 11,183.04 120 20,243.04£      
Brown Daryl 8,940.00 8,940.00£        
Campbell Jean 8,940.00 8,940.00£        
Carlebach Joe 8,940.00 23,838.00 32,778.00£      
Cartwright Michael 8,940.00 6,183.00 15,123.00£      
Chalk Alexander 8,940.00 6,183.00 15,123.00£      
Chumnery Elaine 8,940.00 66.88 9,006.88£        
Coleman Iain 8,940.00 8,940.00£        
Cooney Georgie 8,940.00 3,000.00 11,940.00£      
Cowan Stephen 8,940.00 17,874.00 26,814.00£      
Craig Oliver 8,940.00 8,940.00£        
Crofts William 8,940.00 8,940.00£        
De Lisle Alexander 8,940.00 216 9,156.00£        
Dewhirst Charles 8,940.00 8,940.00£        
Donovan Gavin 8,940.00 8,940.00£        
Donovan Belinda 8,940.00 8,252.22 46.54 443.16 17,681.92£      
Ford Rachel 8,940.00 5,252.23 14,192.23£      
Ginn Marcus 8,940.00 8,940.00£        
Graham Peter 8,940.00 8,940.00£        
Greenhalgh Stephen 8,940.00 35,763.00 44,703.00£      
Hamilton Stephen 8,940.00 8,940.00£        
Harcourt Wesley 8,940.00 8,940.00£        
Homan Lisa 8,940.00 8,940.00£        
Iggulden Robert 8,940.00 930.77 443.16 10,313.93£      
Ivimy Lucy 8,940.00 8,840.75 17,780.75£      
Johnson Donald 8,940.00 6,183.00 15,123.00£      
Johnson Andrew 8,940.00 21,180.25 30,120.25£      
Jones Andrew 8,940.00 443.16 9,383.16£        
Karmel Alex 8,940.00 6,183.00 15,123.00£      
Law jane 8,940.00 2,548.39 120 11,608.39£      
Loveday Mark 8,112.00 22,595.04 30,707.04£      
Murphy Patrick 8,940.00 443.16 9,383.16£        
Needham Caroline 8,940.00 8,940.00£        
Phibbs Harry 8,940.00 23,838.00 120 32,898.00£      
Powell Sally 8,940.00 8,940.00£        
Smith Gregory 8,940.00 23,838.00 32,778.00£      
Stainton Frances 8,940.00 11,509.68 20,449.68£      
Thorley Matt 8,940.00 8,940.00£        
Tobias Peter 8,940.00 451.61 9,391.61£        
Umeh Mercy 8,940.00 8,940.00£        
Vaughan Rory 8,940.00 8,940.00£        

Co-opted 
Members
Allen Eleanor 566.78 0 0 0 0 566.78£           
Brenton Maria 566.78 0 0 0 0 566.78£           
Cook Fiona 566.78 0 0 0 0 566.78£           
Fennimore Sue 566.78 0 0 0 0 566.78£           
Epstein Joyce 283.16 0 0 0 0 283.16£           
Moody-Smart Grace 283.16 0 0 0 0 283.16£           
Moussavi Sheida 283.16 0 0 0 0 283.16£           
White Eugenie 566.78 0 0 0 0 566.78£           

Page 18



  
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
5 APRIL 2012 

 

 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 
ADLADS 
HCS 

 
LOCAL ASSESSMENT OF COMPLAINTS 
 
Summary 
 
This report outlines activity by the Standards (Assessment & 
Review) Sub- Committees from June 2008 to date.  
 
 

WARDS 
 
ALL 

 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
 
That the decisions of the Standards (Assessment & Review) 
Sub-Committees from June 2008 to date be noted. 
 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 19



  

1. Background 
 
At the Standards Committee’s meeting in June 2008 three Sub-Committees, 
namely an Assessment Sub-Committee, a Review Sub-Committee and a 
Hearing Sub-Committee, were set up to deal with any complaints against 
Members under the new sysem of local assessment of complaints.  In the  period 
to date six complaints have been considered by the Assessment Sub-Committee, 
one of which was appealed to  the Review Sub-Committee.  Four of these 
complaints were received from members of the public while two were from 
Councillors.  This relatively low level of complaints compared with volumes in 
other authorities suggests that Councillors and Co-opted Members in 
Hammersmith & Fulham maintain high standards of ethical conduct. 
 
2. Outcome of the Complaints 
 
In half of the cases considered, no breach was found and, therefore, no action 
taken on the allegation.  In the other three, the Assessment Sub-Committee 
decided to refer the matter to the Monitoring Officer for other action to be taken.  
On the occasion on which it was convened the Review Sub Committee upheld 
the decision of the Assessment Sub Committee to find no breach. 
 
The outcome of the some of the complaints have helped to formulate policy and 
raise the awareness of ethics and standards issues amongst Members through 
the referral of the matter to the Monitoring Officer for other action to be taken. 
Details of the cases are listed below:- 
 
2.1 Assessment Sub-Committee - 18 June 2008 

 
• General summary of the complaint  
“I originally called the Councillor to my flat in his capacity as councillor, to 
complain about the Council’s lengthy time carrying out repairs. The Councillor 
then phoned me some time afterwards proposing that I moved to Brighton.  He 
followed this up with a further phone call stating that I would be given money to 
go to Brighton.  On both occasions I declined and made it clear that I was not 
prepared to leave my flat, or the borough, or London. The Councillor then 
followed up by paying an uninvited visit to my home at a weekend and proposed 
that I store my furniture in the front room, hand the keys of the flat to him and in 
return he would give me a train ticket to Brighton and a payment of £2,000.  In 
the course of conversation he made it perfectly clear that this matter would take 
place between me and him within my flat, with no supporting documentation, 
nobody else present and no formal meetings or interviews in any Council office.” 

• Decision 
 
It was decided unanimously that no action should be taken on the allegation. 
 
2.2 Assessment Sub-Committee – 2 February 2010 
 

Page 20



  

• General summary of the complaint  
The complainant alleged that on Thursday, 14 January at approximately 8.45am 
at the main entrance of Stamford Brook underground station,  the Councillor , 
who he had never met before or had any dealings with, but who he had identified 
by looking at Hammersmith & Fulham’s website, was canvassing for upcoming 
local elections and handing out election leaflets. He realised what the leaflet was 
after he took one and handed it back to the Councillor. The allegation concerned 
the nature of the subsequent  conversation between the complainant and the 
Councillor. 
 
• Decision 
 
It was decided unanimously that no action should be taken on the allegation. 
 
2.3. Assessment Sub-Committee 24 March 2010 
 
• General summary of the complaint  
 
Councillor Smith has not replied to correspondence or dealt with the matter to his 
satisfaction in relation to problems with the 843 Bus Route. 
 
• Decision 
 
The Assessment Sub-Committee decided that no breach of the Code arose. 
 
2.4. Review Sub-Committee -  26th April 2010 
 
• General summary of the complaint  
 
Councillor Smith has not replied to correspondence or dealt with the matter to his 
satisfaction in relation to problems with the 843 Bus Route. 
 
• Decision 
 
The Review Sub-Committee decided that no breach of the Code arose. 
 
2.5. Assessment Sub-Committee 11 August 2010 
 
• General summary of the complaint  
 
The complaint stated that Councillor Cowan has failed to treat former Councillor 
White with respect and had brought his office into disrepute by referring to the 
allowance she was entitled to under the Council’s constitution as “a bung”.  
 

• Decision 
 
The Assessment Sub-Committee decided unanimously to refer the matter to the 
Monitoring Officer for other action to be taken. He was to:- 

Page 21



  

• Circulate guidelines to all Members on the application of the Code to blogs. 
• Convey the Committee’s wish that Councillor Cowan apologise directly to 

former Councillor White for his original choice of words. 
 
2.6. Assessment Sub-Committee – 18 May 2011  
 
• General summary of the complaint  
 
The complaint from Councillor PJ Murphy concerned the alleged language used 
by Councillor Greg Smith, a member of the Authority, during a public meeting. 
 
• Decision 
 
The Assessment Sub-Committee decided unanimously to refer the matter to the 
Monitoring Officer for other action to be taken. He was to write to all Councillors 
reminding them to take care in their choice of language while in meetings, 
particularly during public debates, so that others are treated with respect. 
 
2.7. Assessment Sub-Committee - 9 January 2012 
 
• General summary of the complaint  
 
A complaint concerning the language used by Councillor Greg Smith, a member 
of the Authority, on a social media channel. 
 
• Decision 
 
The Assessment Sub-Committee decided unanimously to refer the matter to the 
Monitoring Officer for other action to be taken. He was to include in the draft local 
Code of Conduct for Members, due to be recommended to Council for adoption 
upon the implementation of the Standards provisions contained in the Localism 
Act 2011, guidelines on the appropriate use of social media by elected members 
in their official capacity. The guidelines should emphasise that the use of foul 
language in such circumstances is unacceptable and advise Members to use 
personal accounts for private comments unrelated to the business of the 
authority. In the interim he was also to re-circulate to all Councillors the existing 
guidance on blogging issued by Standards for England. 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000  
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
No. 
 

Brief Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext. of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/Location 
 
1. 
 
 

Standards (Assessment and 
Review) Sub Committee 
Agendas (exempt) 

 
Kayode Adewumi xt2499 

 
Legal, First Floor HTH, 
Rm 133a 

 

Page 22


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	4 Localism Act 2012 - Implementation of Proposals
	5 Members Allowances 2011/12 Outturn
	Appendix 1 - Members Allowances Scheme
	Appendix 2 - Payments to Members 2011/12

	6 Local Assessment of Complaints - Review

